
 PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL   
 JOINT STUDY SESSION/SPECIAL MEETING
 TUESDAY, JUNE 3, 2008  
 PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
 
 
MINUTES OF THE JOINT STUDY SESSION/SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL held on JUNE 3, 2008 in the COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
located at CITY HALL, 201 SOUTH CORTEZ STREET, Prescott, Arizona. 
 

  CALL TO ORDER: 
     
 Mayor Wilson called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 
 

 INTRODUCTIONS:                                             
 

 INVOCATION: 
 
 Pastor Mark Stafford of Harvest Bible Chapel gave the invocation. 
                        

 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:     
 
 Councilman Bell led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

  ROLL CALL: 
 
Present     Absent 

  
Mayor Wilson     Councilman Roecker 
Councilman Bell    
Councilman Lamerson   
Councilwoman Lopas  
Councilman Luzius  
Councilwoman Suttles 

 
   SUMMARY OF CURRENT OR RECENT EVENTS  
 

 City Manager Steve Norwood said next Monday, June 9, 2008 at 1:30 p.m. 
out at the Airport there will be a press conference and unveiling of Horizon 
Air. He said they will actually begin business in Prescott next fall but starting 
Monday customers will be able to start booking flights with Horizon. He said 
there was also one proposal submitted on the EAS grant process, which 
they have not been able to review, to replace Air Midwest.  He said it was 
Great Lakes and they will be evaluating that in order to provide more details 
soon.     

 



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 2 
 
 
I. PROCLAMATIONS 
 
 A. June 2 – 8, 2008 as Heritage Park Zoological Sanctuary Week. 
    

 Councilwoman Lora Lopas read the proclamation proclaiming June 2 – 8, 
2008 as Heritage Park Zoological Sanctuary Week.  She presented the 
proclamation to Pat McLaren, Executive Director, and Jennifer 
Woolnough, Marketing Events Coordinator.  Ms. McLaren thanked the City 
Council and the City of Prescott on behalf of the staff and the animals for 
their support.      

 
 B. June 6, 2008 as American Cancer Society’s Relay for Life Day. 

    
 Mayor Wilson read the proclamation proclaiming June 6, 2008 as 

American Cancer Society’s Relay for Life Day, indicating he himself is a 
cancer survivor.     

 
II. PRESENTATION 
 

A. Presentation by LEA Architects on the Downtown Fire Station. 
    
 Emergency Service Director Darrell Willis introduced Larry Enyart, 

Principal of LEA Architects, and said Mr. Enyart has designed about 122 
fire stations. Chief Willis said Mr. Enyart is considered one of the premiere 
architects for fire station design in the nation and was chosen about eight 
months ago to design this project.  Chief Willis said they are at 25% 
design and would like to see if they are on the right track.   

    
 Mr. Enyart said it is his pleasure to be there and provide the Council with 

an update on the new Fire Station #76 and Administration Building, Exhibit 
A attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

 
Councilman Bell said as a general contractor he has learned they 
generally don’t question the architect and he hopes that what is said will 
be taken as good constructive criticism.  He said he is concerned about 
the brick and asked if that could be 4” terra cotta block that is made in 
Prescott and could save them a lot of money.  Mr. Enyart said they have 
looked at that and all the split face is made here in Prescott and that block 
company is a representative for the brick maker just mentioned.  He said 
the jumbo brick ties in with the brick of historic downtown Prescott in his 
opinion and there is lots of split face block in Prescott.   
 
Councilman Bell said he is thinking of the location of the Depot 
Marketplace and the new Summit Bank and does not see how the Fire 
Station fits in with that.  He said he is impressed with the barrel vaults but 



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 3 
 

nowhere else in Prescott does he see those arches.  Councilman Bell said 
he knows as a general contractor that they are very high cost to build 
because the roof is high, the insulation is high and a lot of cubic footage 
has been added up there.  He said he is concerned about that because 
they are trying to save money in heating and air conditioning.   

   
Councilman Bell said looking at the entrance on the right side he suggests 
some kind of canopy because if people go up there to enter that building 
and it is raining there is no cover.  He said there is a lot of glass in the 
whole building, especially the arches that go over the service door that will 
have to be formed out of masonry, which is expensive to do.  Councilman 
Bell said understanding they are only at 25% design, the ramp to the 
trestle that goes back and forth two or three ways would be difficult 
handicapped person trying to negotiate that in the rain and wonders if 
there might be a better way to do that.  He said he is thinking about it from 
the point of saving several million dollars and some ways to cut some 
costs.  He said he kind of looks at this design as a Phoenix monument 
instead of a Prescott Fire Station.    

   
Councilman Luzius said he thinks it is great and that it is sure a lot 
different than the engine houses he was in when he was in the fire force.  
He asked if it would have any brass pole coming down from the dormitory 
down into the main floor. Mr. Enyart said there will be two poles.  
Councilman Luzius said he thinks the brick is very aesthetic and the bank 
across the street is similar so it ties in very well.  He said they are building 
something that is going to last for years and years and that it will be the 
number one fire station of the City of Prescott.  He said he is glad they will 
have some room for expansion because they will surely need it.  

   
Councilman Lamerson said it is a pretty building.  He said he still goes 
back to his comments that indeed they have changed their plan to make 
this the number one fire station in the downtown then that is a different 
issue from where they originally started off.  He said he thought this was 
an additional ancillary fire station to replace what they had.  He said to 
Chief Willis that he thought they were going to have a one crew station 
and one of the reasons this rather small station was appealing is because 
they were not going to have a huge station right down the street from the 
one they have on White Spar.  He asked if the intent is to have new main 
fire station in Prescott, which includes all of the administration.   
    
Chief Willis saidm speaking of the White Spar stationm that is located on 
an edge of the community and it is pretty poor design for the fire service to 
have that big of a station on the edge rather than servicing out of a radius 
area. He said the second part of that is they are currently leasing 
administration space at the tune of about $60,000 per year.  Chief Willis 
said he believes that is a very poor utilization of City dollars but they do 



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 4 
 

not have any space to put those people.   He said they tried to make the 
new station customer friendly and in close proximity to City Hall and the 
building department.  Chief Willis said the Central Yavapai Fire District 
currently provides service on 6th Street and it has tree bays in it right now 
and has been there for about 30 years.  He said they need the apparatus 
room, they need a centralized station and that the new station will be the 
busiest station in the community.  He said all of that downtown high value 
business area is where the majority of their calls come from rather than 
the outskirts.  Chief Willis said the reason the White Spar station is busy 
right now is because they do not have another closer location.   
    
Councilman Lamerson asked how many bays are in White Spar.  Chief 
Willis said that was a car dealership and he thinks there are six bays.   
    
Councilwoman Lopas asked about the heating and air conditioning system 
and what the plans are for that.  Mr. Enyart said the building has venting 
windows and they have split system package units up on the roof. He said 
behind the parapet walls where the vaults are not they have package units 
on the roof servicing the various parts of the building.  He said it is not 
solar cooled but they do have solar collectors up there as well to do their 
domestic hot water.       
    
Councilman Luzius said he recalls very distinctly that this building was 
going to be administration and administration had moved out of the 
Williamson Valley station due to lack of space and the new construction 
on Iron Springs.  He said they are aware of the Fire Department renting 
space at the Santa Fe Springs office facility costing the City a lot of 
money.  Councilman Luzius said the administration is divorced away from 
the rest of the department and all of the action and they should have 
centrally located administration as well as the fire station.  He said most 
downtowns have the larger fire stations and one that he worked for a few 
years ago had eight companies come out of the one station.  He said all of 
this is done so they can reduce response time, protect citizens downtown 
and lower insurance rates.     
       
Councilwoman Suttles asked Chief Willis how long the White Spar station 
has been there; Chief Willis said since 1991.  She said it has done what it 
was supposed to do.  She said she was concerned at his reference to the 
White Spar station serving that end of town because that is a growing, 
forested part of the community.  Councilwoman Suttles asked how far it is 
from Gurley and Cortez.  Chief Willis said about two – three minutes.  He 
said one of the things they are doing is the new station will be replacing 
the Central Yavapai station on 6th Street.  He said they are not adding 
personnel and the CYFD will be moving out to their edge of the district is 
at Station 72 on Iron Springs and Williamson Valley while the City brings 
its personnel into the new station.  Chief Willis said that although the 



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 5 
 

White Spar station is at a growing edge of town it is isolated and at the 
new station can respond anywhere.  He said it is a hub and the location is 
critical because they can go three directions on major arterials very 
quickly.         

   
Councilwoman Suttles said she understands all that and confirmed they 
will keep the White Spar station.  She said when they see a presentation 
like this they tend to forget what they have out there.  She said they are 
going through a capital needs process regarding what they want and what 
they need. 
    
Mr. Norwood said when they started this three to four years ago this was 
essentially transferring the Iron Springs fire station to downtown in 
exchange for CYFD vacating 6th Street and going out to Iron Springs 
because the road expansion essentially rendered that facility worthless as 
an administration where people come and go.  Mr. Norwood said there 
have been some questions and comments regarding the design of the 
facility and asked Mr. Enyart if he ran this through the City’s Preservation 
Specialist, Nancy Burgess.   
 
Mr. Enyart said they did run through Ms. Burgess and Nancy thought very 
favorably to what they were doing.  He said regarding Councilman Bell’s 
questions, the bridge is not a part of their project but they felt obligated to 
think about how to interact with the bridge and how the station should be 
lined up to meet and greet it. Mr. Enyart said they have included an 
elevator to address ADA requirements shown as the little tower as part of 
a museum that features the bronze and tablatures much like is seen 
around Prescott with the historic information.  He said it is not their job to 
design it but if they did that is how he would address it.   
      
Mr. Enyart said in reference to simple building their building plan is very 
rectangular without a lot of angles and tricks.  He said the barrel vaults 
add interest and give a continuity of theme.  He said looking at downtown 
Prescott a lot of historic arches can be seen in various buildings and they 
do not see that as very costly.  He said it is repetitive, all the beams are 
the same and the masonry arches are the same.  Mr. Enyart said when 
they first programmed the building and doing all of the things they wanted 
to do they were up to about 29,000 square feet.  He said they have a very 
good user group led by a very fine Fire Chief who is trying to be good 
stewards of the budget. 
    
Councilman Bell said he would request that this come back to the 
Preservation Commission for a courtesy review.   
 
Mayor Wilson said he said he has a very strong historic preservation 
background and he thinks it is going in the right direction. He said he 



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 6 
 

would like to see an option for full LEED Certification.  He said he would 
also like to see the outside bathroom as an option going in and not just 
stubbed out because they have to look at the trail folks just well as they 
have to look at the public health and safety impacts.  
  
Councilman Lamerson asked Chief Willis how much the original cost 
estimate was when they started with this project a few years back.  Chief 
Willis said it was probably in the three to five million dollar range.  
Councilman Lamerson said that is what he was thinking and now they are 
up to about eight million.   

 
III. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
A. Approval of grant recipients in the amount of $35,000.00 as recommended 

by the Prescott Area Arts and Humanities Council. 
    

Economic Development Director Jane Bristol said the City of Prescott has 
a contract with Prescott Area Arts and Humanities Council to review 
applications for grants for the arts and make a recommendation to City 
Council for funding. She said for the current fiscal year they have 
budgeted $35,000 and the funds are available in the bed tax fund.  She 
said a panel of members of the organization met to review the grant 
applications and Deb Thurston is in attendance to answer questions.     

   
Councilwoman Suttles asked about the $500 administrative expense and if 
they paid that last year.  Ms. Thurston said they did and it is used to pay 
for books for panel members, lunch, and advertising the availability of the 
grants.  Ms. Bristol said the administration expense has been there as 
long as she is aware of and that this facilitates the process of awarding the 
grants.  Ms. Thurston added that the fund does not go to a person.   

     
Elisabeth Ruffner, Chairman of the Grants Committee for the Arts Council, 
said this is all for supplies and materials and that they are total volunteer 
organization.     

 
B. Approval of Resolutions for submission to the League of Arizona Cities 

and Towns’ Resolutions Committee for the 2009 Legislative Session. 
    

Management Analyst Connie Tucker said this is a new item for the Council 
as a whole. She said every year the Arizona League of Cities and Towns 
holds an annual meeting where they adopt resolutions to further cities’ 
issues on to the Legislature in the next legislative session.  Ms. Tucker 
said last year the City of Prescott submitted two resolutions which were 
adopted and turned into House Bills.  She said unfortunately neither bills 
was heard.  Ms. Tucker said this year they have brought those same two 
resolutions back to Council for consideration to resubmitting them again in 



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 7 
 

addition to two new resolutions to consider.  She said they have some 
other resolutions from other cities or towns requesting a co- sponsorship 
from the City of Prescott to be reviewed as well. The four that the City of 
Prescott would like to submit have a co-sponsor in the Town of Prescott 
Valley.   
    
Ms. Tucker said the first resolution is to modify liquor laws to allow cities 
and towns to have more say in issuing a liquor license. She said the 
legislation that was put together last year would have required a 2/3 vote 
by the total membership of the Liquor Board to approve an application that 
had been denied by the community.  She said the resolution they are 
submitting has not changed from last year and they have submitted this 
and the other resolutions to get a broader base of support.       

     
Ms. Tucker said the second resolution they are resubmitting is for 
Requests for Proposals for professional services, which is architects and 
engineers. She said what they submitted last year was turned into a 
House Bill sponsored by Rep. Tobin but was never heard.  She said the 
resolution asked for cities and towns be allowed to ask for a price range in 
their RFP’s that would be one of several criteria used and that it could not 
be weighted more than 20% in the qualifications review.  She said they 
met with representatives of engineers and architects to express their 
concerns.  Ms. Tucker said the professionals are afraid it is going to go to 
a lowest bid requirement and the whole purpose of the professional 
services request for proposal is to get away from the low bid in order to 
truly select on qualifications only.  She said they have added the wording 
“one of several criteria.”  

 
Ms. Tucker said the third resolution they have for submission was drafted 
by the Mayor to urge the Congressional delegation for the State of Arizona 
to work on comprehensive immigration reform.   
 
Mayor Wilson said the immigration concerns they have are at a federal 
level and until they have a comprehensive immigration reform they are not 
going to resolve their problems.  He said the basic intent of this resolution 
is to urge the Arizona League of Cities and Towns to urge the 
Congressional delegation to seriously look at reform.     

   
Ms Tucker said the fourth resolution would amend Title 39 to allow 
municipalities to actually charge what it costs to comply with Freedom of 
Information Act public records requests.  She said the City currently has a 
per page charge that does not cover the amount of time necessary to fulfill 
some public records requests.  She said the City receives very broad 
requests, for example to cover all emails, which takes a lot of time to 
gather those together due to the hundreds of thousands of emails the City 
receives.  She said even if they charge for every single page they are only 



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 8 
 

charging $.25 per page and it does not cover the staff time.  Ms Tucker 
said this is specific to large requests, not every single records request.       

  
Councilman Luzius said they are all very good resolutions.  He said he 
and Connie were at the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and 
Control and they were given a promise from one of the Liquor License 
Board Members to come up and provide a Liquor License 101 but she 
never returned the phone calls.   

    
Councilman Bell said the professional services resolution from last year 
was discussed in a meeting with representatives of the professional 
services and Representative Tobin attended by telephone conference.  
Councilman Bell said the cities and towns gave the synopsis of their 
position and then the architects, engineers and their attorneys refuted 
those positions.  He said Rep. Tobin put it into a bill to be heard by the 
Commerce Committee of the legislature.  He said on the night before they 
were to go down to present their case to the committee they received a 
phone call that the chairman of the Commerce Committee had withdrawn 
the bill from consideration.  Councilman Bell said that experience tells him 
those professional services people have a wonderful lobby situation down 
there, therefore he does not have a lot of confidence they will get 
anywhere with this submission again.     

    
Ms. Tucker said this year the League is requiring written confirmation of 
co-sponsorship.  She said three of them are in the Council packets and 
she has distributed a fourth one yesterday.  She said the first one comes 
from the City of Flagstaff asking the Legislature to continue funding the 
Housing Trust Fund, which helps the more vulnerable populations in the 
state.  Ms. Tucker said this is the biggest source for projects in rural 
Arizona.     

    
Ms. Tucker said the next one is also from the City of Flagstaff to identify 
funding sources for the Arizona Water Supply Revolving Fund.  She said 
this was established by House Bill 2692; however, they did not fund it and 
that this part of the whole Senate Bill 1575 Water Adequacy legislation 
passed to allow counties to require adequate water supply outside of the 
AMA.  Ms. Tucker said the Water Supply Revolving Fund was seen as the 
carrot to the other bill in terms that if they have to require adequate water 
supply they need some help in developing it, especially in rural Arizona.  
She said it would be administered by WIFA and it would be available to all 
of the state. Ms. Tucker said the resolution identifies some funding 
sources but some of the larger cities have problems with those funding 
sources so this resolution may be a difficult one to move forward.   
 
Ms. Tucker said the third one in the Council packets was from City of 
Sierra Vista urging the Legislature to adopt the Governor’s Task Force 



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 9 
 

recommendations on physician attraction and retention. She said the main 
point of it is to address the medical malpractice insurance premium costs. 
 She said this was sent to Tim Barnett at Yavapai Regional Medical 
Center and he supports this and said that he is thankful for any efforts by 
the Prescott City Council and the League.    

    
Ms. Tucker said the fourth one is from the City of Cottonwood asking the 
Legislature to protect and authorize full appropriation for the Edward Burn 
Memorial Justice Assistance Grant.  She said this grant funds the PANT 
program.  She spoke with Chief Oaks who said the City uses this money 
with Prescott’s PANT program.  Ms. Tucker said this one and the first one 
about the Housing Trust Fund tend to get swept by the Legislature or not 
fully funded when the budgets are tight as they are now.  Ms Tucker said 
the basic reason for both of these grants is to make the Legislature aware 
of how important these types of funds are to rural Arizona.   

  
C. Adoption of Ordinance No. 4654-0856 – An ordinance of the Mayor and 

Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, authorizing the 
sale of miscellaneous surplus property and authorizing the Administrative 
Services Director to execute any and all documents to effectuate said 
sales. 

    
Administrative Services Director Mic Fenech said this item is to consider 
the sale of surplus property.  He said staff is asking to use Renee Bates 
Auctioneers because the City has a history of success with this company. 
He said in the packet is a list of items that have been replaced and will be 
going to auction as well as some vehicle auction data from the last seven 
auctions.   

    
Councilwoman Suttles asked Mr. Fenech if the PD Patrol Crown Victoria 
cars are the older police cars that are still the blue and white.  Chief Oaks 
said they are the blue and white ones.      

   
Mayor Wilson asked about the 2008 Ford. Mr. Fenech said when they 
purchased the ford pick up trucks they come with a regular pick up truck 
bed and it has been replaced with a utility body.  He said it is just the bed 
that is up for auction.   
 

D. Response to Petitions filed on May 13, 2008 re the installation of a 
pedestrian-activated stop light at the corner of West Gurley and Summit 
streets. 

    
Ian Mattingly said this item is to present an update on the petition for the 
installation of a pedestrian activated signal at Gurley and Summit that was 
previously submitted to Council in late April and early May. He said 
following the May 13, 2008 Council meeting with the petitioner, staff has 



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 10 
 

since met with Lisa Barnes of Prescott Alternative Transit.  He said she is 
assisting the petitioners in the process and as a result of that meeting it 
was decided that staff, the petitioner, and Lisa Barnes would attend the 
next Transportation Coordinating Committee meeting to look at the 
possible alternatives.  He said they will return to Council probably in July 
with an update or solution.      

    
Councilman Luzius asked if this is informational only.  Mr. Mattingly said 
yes, and there is an action to direct staff to do this.   
    
Margaret Mendoza, 500 West Gurley Street, has had a business there on 
that corner for about 15 years. She said it has big windows and she can 
see and hear a lot.  Ms. Mendoza said over the years the City has grown 
and she has observed a lot of close calls. She said the citizens she and 
Sandra Parker spoke to said they are thankful to be able to express their 
concerns about crossing Gurley.    
 
Sandra Parker said she and Margaret Mendoza initiated the petition 
because they saw the danger in this corner. She said she provided 
Council with a full response to Mr. Mattingly’s report and will be speaking 
at the TCC meeting scheduled on Thursday.  Ms. Parker said the citizens 
in that find this to be a very dangerous corner.  She said the report only 
addressed pedestrian volume and not the issue of pedestrian safety.   
 
Councilman Lamerson said it seems to him that not all towns are the 
same, not all conditions are the same and not all traffic patterns are the 
same.  He asked Mr. Mattingly if it is conceivable that a community does 
something that is not necessarily prescribed in a book rather in the best 
interest of public safety for that particular community that they do 
something different.  Mr. Mattingly said that cities do vary from the norm or 
the warranted.   
 
Councilman Luzius said he looks forward to the July update and that this 
is needed.  He said the TCC recommended putting bike lanes on Sixth 
Street and Council voted against it.  He said he hoped in this case that the 
Council can vote for the pedestrian-activated stop light.   
 
Mayor Wilson said he wants this to go through the process but one thing 
to keep in mind is the City does not have a lot of money.   
 

E. Response to Petitions filed on May 13, 2008 re immigration issues in 
Prescott. 

     
Mayor Wilson said he is responding for the City on this and said there are 
three issues addressed in the petition.  He said the petitioners did not 
want the City to send their Police Officers to I.C.E. training, however the 



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 11 
 

policy of the Council is to send the officers to I.C.E. training and they have 
not changed that policy.  He said they have had a meeting in Phoenix with 
three I.C.E. representatives and two state legislators and I.C.E. indicated 
they are only training detention officers at this time. He said the City 
remains committed to requesting I.C.E. training.     
 
Mayor Wilson said the second issue, as previously discussed, is that the 
City is submitting a resolution on comprehensive immigration reform by 
asking the Arizona League of Cities and Towns to support the resolution 
going to the congressional delegation.  He said they have also been in 
contact with the City of Phoenix and they are ready to send a letter outside 
of the normal process to the Congressional delegation signed by himself 
and Mayor Phil Gordon supporting comprehensive immigration reform.  
 
Mayor Wilson said the third issue is the question of whether the City is 
sending its forms appropriately in this area and he said they believe they 
are.   

 
F. Approval of Amendment One to the contract with Weber Group, L.C. for 

emergency well repairs, with no adjustment for compensation above 
$240,000.00 previously approved by Council for a three-year contract 
($80,000 per year). 

   
Jim Ciaffoni said this item is to direct staff to enter into a contract 
amendment for emergency well maintenance and repairs with Weber 
Group, L.C.  He said the memo will allow the staff more flexibility in 
addressing the uncertain nature of the timing of emergency repairs by 
authorizing staff to increase the current purchase order to the full 
$240,000 that was authorized by Council on April 24, 2007.  Mr. Ciaffoni 
said the Council originally awarded the three-year contract for 4/2007 to 
extend until 4/2010.  Mr. Ciaffoni said there was an authorization for 
$80,000 annually.  He said the actual contract does not specify a limit as 
to how much can be spent annually or over the three year period.  He said 
the problem came about when the FY Budget allotted $80,000 and they 
exceeded that amount with an expense of about $120,000 for emergency 
well repairs.  Mr. Ciaffoni said they also have Well 2 down for repairs, 
which will probably result in $25,000 - $30,000 more in repair expenses.  
He said the original P.O. of $80,000 for FY 2008 was increased to 
$160,000 under emergency provisions of the Procurement Code.  He said 
staff would like to have the flexibility to be able to authorize the P.O. to 
include the entire $240,000 for 2007 – 2010. 

  
G. Adoption of Ordinance No. 4655-0857 – An ordinance of the Mayor and 

Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, amending the 
zoning map pertaining to that certain property located at the southwest 
corner of State Highway 89 and Prescott Lakes Parkway described as 



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 12 
 

Parcel Numbers:  Portions of 105-09-295A and 105-09-005C, from 
“Single-Family 9 (PAD)” and “Multi-Family Medium” to “Business General”; 
and a portion of Parcel Number 105-04-003D, from “Business General” to 
“Single-Family 9 (PAD).” 

 
    George Worley said this was a follow-up rezoning request for clean up of 

areas modified by a General Plan amendment recently approved by 
Council.  He said the property is located at SR 89 and Prescott Lakes 
Parkway on the Southwest corner.  Mr. Worley said two portions of the 
property are being converted from some form of single family or multi-
family zoning to a commercial zoning.  He said one are that is currently 
commercial zoning will go to single family zoning.  Mr. Worley said this 
action will basically realign the district boundaries in that area to conform 
to the General Plan amendment.  He said this request went through the 
Planning and Zoning Commission for review and they recommended 
unanimously for approval.  He said they also had a public hearing in the 
area and no significant issues came out of that meeting either.     

   
Councilman Bell asked to have confirmation about the public meeting. 
   

    Patty Braden, 1755 Pacific Avenue, said she represented the Cliff Rose 
homeowners and had attended the meeting with about 30 homeowners.  
She said they are fine with the rezoning and the only issue that has come 
up has to do with any rock crushing on the premises.  Ms. Braden said it is 
quite loud and goes on day after day.   

    
Mr. Worley said if the noise or dust conditions associated with 
development become an issue that can certainly be addressed by current 
codes.  

    
Councilman Luzius asked if the City limits rock crushing to certain daylight 
hours. Mr. Worley said the Code will generally protect citizens from noise 
too early or too late.  Councilman Luzius said he wants to make sure the 
folks in Cliff Rose and the surrounding area are not disturbed.  He asked if 
the entrance in to the area on Prescott Lakes Parkway is too close to SR 
89.  Mr. Worley said they do not have a real good site plan from them yet 
and as more comes in from them staff will get something that has 
dimensions on it. He said that curb cut was created at the time the 
Prescott Lake Parkway was designed and built and it does meet City 
standards.    

 
H. Adoption of Resolution No. 3894-0862 – A resolution of the Mayor and 

Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, authorizing the 
City of Prescott to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), 
with the Northern Arizona Council of Governments (NACOG) Economic 



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 13 
 

Workforce Development, providing for the administration of the voucher 
transit program for Fiscal Year 2009, and authorizing the Mayor and staff 
to take any and all steps necessary to accomplish the above.  

    
George Worley said this is a renewal of a Memorandum of Understanding 
with NACOG for administration of their voucher transit program.  He said 
the only issue they have different is that there is a possibility of State 
funding being cut to this program and they will not know that until late in 
summer.  He said this is done annually and staff supports it and 
encourages Council’s adoption.   
  
Councilman Bell asked when they will expend those funds.  Mr. Worley 
said they will not be expended until they hear from the State, sometime in 
August. Councilman Bell said if in fact there is a state cut the City should 
also look at that for their percent.       

    
Councilwoman Suttles asked if NACOG simply cut the numbers down if 
the funding is not there.   

    
Eileen Nesman from NACOG said she has been with the transportation 
program for over three and half years.  She said they do depend on 
income from the City, a commitment from the City for those funds.  She 
said at this point they will be pretty much out of money by the end of June 
2008.  Ms. Nesman said they will not have money to go forward unless 
money is budgeted for the program.  She said they serve over 350 people 
each month compared to when they started, they served 150 – 200 people 
per month.  She said the individuals usually get $30 - $35 in vouchers per 
month. Ms. Nesman said they serve people who do not have other forms 
of transportation, the handicapped, and the elderly, who need to get to 
doctor appointments, do their banking or shopping and that sort of thing.  
She said she hopes the Council will consider funding the program.    

    
Councilwoman Suttles said the City depends on ADOT funding from the 
lottery and then the City comes up with a percent.  She asked if NACOG 
would be looking for the City to do all of it if the funding is not there. 
Ms. Nesman said they would. Mr. Worley said the City actually budgets 
approximately $120,000, it is their match of $30,000.   
 
Mayor Wilson said he does not think the City can pick up the balance and 
if the State dumps them they are stuck.  He said the City is not going to 
have funds beyond what they have already committed.      
 
 
 
Councilwoman Suttles asked if they want to pull this item off of the 
Consent Agenda to wait and see what the funding will be from the State or 



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 14 
 

do they want to leave it on the Consent Agenda.  Mr. Worley said they will 
not know from the state about the LTAP money until August.   
 
Councilman Bell asked Ms. Nesman if she could tell them how much they 
get from Prescott Valley, Chino Valley and Yavapai County.  Ms. Nesman 
said each of the cities contribute money but this year everyone is in the 
same boat waiting to hear about the State funding.  She said right now 
they do have a commitment from Prescott Valley for $76,000 for their 
program which is reduced from last year.  She said the Town of Dewey-
Humboldt has committed $19,000 because they have a much smaller 
population and Chino Valley is considering budgeting $15,000.   
 
Councilman Bell asked Mark Woodfill if the City pays by reimbursement.  
Mr. Woodfill said yes, that NACOG submits a bill to the City showing what 
vouchers they have issued. Councilman Bell asked if the City can 
schedule that so that after the new fiscal year starts the City funds a 
portion of that not knowing how the State is going to fund in order for the 
program to not run out of money and no longer offer rides.  Mr. Woodfill 
said they can budget the $30,000 as their match and that can be done 
upfront.  He said that should get them to the point where they will know 
what the funding is.      

   
Councilman Luzius said the LTAP2 money, which comes from the lottery, 
is also used by other transportation organizations in addition to NACOG.  
He said it is his understanding through the lobbying arm of the Arizona 
Transit Association that the next year’s LTAP2 money will be available but 
it is the following year that they are really concerned about.  He said he 
has submitted a letter indicating how important this money is to the local 
voucher system.    
    

I. Authorization to purchase insurance policies for FY09 totaling $479,166.00 
($308,701.00 to AIG; $45,548.00 to Midwest Employer’s Casualty; 
$124,917.00 to Traveler’s Indemnity Co.). 
    
City Attorney Gary Kidd said this is the annual renewal of insurance 
policies for the City.  He said they have public entity insurance liability, 
workers’ compensation and property insurance.  He said he discussed 
some other policies in the memo not yet due for renewal, such as tenant 
users’ policies and airport premises and liability and environmental 
insurance. Mr. Kidd introduced Peter Leary from Marsh and Risk Manager 
Sheri Swain, who then gave a PowerPoint presentation, Exhibit B attached 
hereto and made a part hereof. 

  
Mayor Wilson asked what the staff thinks.  Sheri Swain said she agrees 
with Mr. Leary’s recommendation.  She said it is a matter of whether they 
want to take on another $250,000 in a deductible or self-insured retention 



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 15 
 

versus adding another $75,000 to a premium and being able to raise the 
retention by $100,000 with they have right now with $250,000.  She said 
the reason is that if they choose to go with the higher retention and the 
market changes they may not have the option again to go back down to a 
lower retention.      

   
Councilman Bell asked Mr. Leary how Marsh is compensated.  Mr. Leary 
said they participate in an RFP every number of years and provide their 
credentials to the City of Prescott on how they can reduce the total cost to 
risk. Councilman Bell asked if Marsh receives anything from the 
companies with which they place the insurance.  Mr. Leary said no, Marsh 
does not accept any contingent commissions at all. Councilman Bell asked 
how much the City of Prescott paid Marsh last year.  Mr. Leary said he 
thinks it was approximately $37,000.   

   
Councilman Lamerson said the change seems quite big and asked if it is 
the market or something the City has done.  Mr. Leary said there are a lot 
of contributors toward the increase, for one they are at the beginning of a 
hard market and it just happens to be in the public entity sector.  He said a 
lot of it also has to do with supply and demand as far as the number of 
carriers that will actually participate in public entity business. Mr. Leary 
said the number of carriers has actually reduced based on their ability to 
provide a very good breadth of coverage for all of the exposures for the 
City of Prescott.  He said the last contributor is claims activity and there 
has been some.    

   
Councilwoman Suttles said on the property insurance the premium went 
up because of the additional Rodeo Grounds and the Central Garage.  
She said she thinks that needs to be noted. 

   
Councilman Lamerson asked if the age of the City’s infrastructure has 
something to do with the cost of insurance.  Mr. Leary said it does and 
there are many ingredients that an underwriter looks at in a property 
portfolio, for example where a fire station is located, whether it is has a 
sprinkler system or not, how the building is constructed, what the 
occupancies of buildings are, what the building is exposed to and things 
like that. Councilman Lamerson asked if it included things like water and 
sewer lines. Mr. Leary said that is a small piece but obviously water supply 
is definitely a major contributor towards how an underwriter will ally the 
property premium.       

      
Mr. Leary thanked Ms Swain who in her first year on the job in working 
with them did a very good job.  He said their job is to portray the City of 
Prescott in a positive light and the only way he can do that is through a 
team effort.  Mr. Leary said they think that unfortunately the hard market is 



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 16 
 

going to come into play and there are different avenues that public entities 
take in order to reduce their total cost to risk.   

 
J. Award of Banking Services Contract to Wells Fargo. 
    

Mark Woodfill said the City of Prescott, with the number of transactions 
they have, have significant banking relationships. He said this is their 
general banking services contract they go out for every five years. He said 
they have received responses from five banks. He said the banking 
services pricing is dependent upon what services they use and it could 
change depending on if they use electronic capture checks or direct 
deposit or those types of things.  Upon completion of an estimated cost 
staff analyzed these responses and Wells Fargo is the low bank, which is 
not the City’s current bank.  He said the current bank is Chase and they 
came in third.  
 
He said staff is recommending the City go with Wells Fargo. He said Wells 
Fargo will provide banking services at $10,000 below the City’s current 
bank, which is $30,000 - $50,000 over the life of the contract, and they will 
be providing $15,000 soft costs to help with some of the conversions costs 
on top of that.   
 
Mayor Wilson asked if this will require new credit cards.  Mr. Woodfill said 
yes, this will require the issuance of new credit cards but it will not require 
printing new checks because the City uses blank check stocks that can be 
modified in the program.       

 
K. Adoption of Resolution No. 3892-0860 - A Resolution of the Mayor and 

Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, approving the 
transfer of unencumbered appropriations from the Capital Improvement 
Fund to the Self-Insurance Fund.  

    
Mark Woodfill said this item has to do with the reappropriation of budget 
on the Self-Insurance Fund.  He said claims were higher than anticipated 
in the current year’s budget and as it looks now this fund will be going over 
budget by about $300,000.  He said this is related to appropriation, not to 
cash, and that there is cash in the fund to cover these.  Mr. Woodfill said 
the legal appropriation that is required by state law needs to be moved 
and any movement by Charter requires Council approval to be moved 
from one department to another. He said they are requesting Council 
move $300,000 in appropriation from the Capital Facilities Fund to the 
Internal Service Fund Self-Insurance.   

    
Mayor Wilson asked what accounts for the higher than expected claims.  
Mr. Woodfill said he believes a lot of them are coming from the workers’ 



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 17 
 

compensation; they also had some significant injuries this last year as well 
as some liability claims.    

 
L. Adopt Resolution No. 3893-0861 - A Resolution of the Mayor and Council 

of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, adopting a tentative 
budget, adopting the estimated amounts required to meet the public 
expenses for the City of Prescott for the Fiscal Year 2008-2009, 
authorizing and directing publication of statements and schedules of the 
tentative budget, together with notice of hearing on said budget and notice 
of date of final adoption of said budget, and notice of date of 
establishment of the expenditure limitation, and notice of the date for fixing 
a tax levy.  

    
Mark Woodfill said this item is the adoption of a tentative budget.  He said 
on May 22, 2008 at the Budget Workshop they went over each operating 
fund in detail, capital, and some of the challenges being faced by some of 
the City’s funds most significantly streets. He said the handouts at the 
retreat showed a $203,436,243 budget.  Mr. Woodfill said some of the 
things that have changed during the retreat and since, such as the golf 
carts purchase that will not happen by the end of the year and needs to be 
carried over to the FY 2009 budget.  He said Council wanted to add a 
contingency of $60,000 in the transient occupancy tax; an additional 
election; a Quest property tax judgment; $10,000 to Meals on Wheels; a 
reduction in some construction grants at the Airport that were moved out 
on the five year plan; and a Capital Needs contingency added to the 
tentative budget.      

    
Mayor Wilson asked if Mr. Woodfill is looking at the stuff the Capital Needs 
Committee is recommending; Mr. Woodfill said he was.  Mayor Wilson 
said he is not so sure he wants to do it that way because his thinking is 
that Capital Needs Committee is going to come recommend on June 17th 
and that is beyond where they set the budget limitations.  He said if they 
include anything beyond what the Committee is recommending they are 
stuck and cannot do it.   
 
Mr. Woodfill said they cannot do it next year and the reality is all of the 
Capital Needs projects are not going to take off in the first year so it could 
be in the subsequent year’s budget. He said the Police Department 
construction is at least a year away if approved through all those steps.  
He said just because it is not in the budget for next year that just means 
they do not issue bonds and start construction next year but they could 
start next July 2009 for FY 2010 budget.   

   
Councilman Bell said it has been pointed out to him that when they had 
their Budget Workshop they talked about funding the furniture for the golf 



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 18 
 

course from bed tax fund.  He said the golf course is an Enterprise Fund 
and that money should not come from the Bed Tax Fund.    

    
Mr. Woodfill said as an enterprise fund the golf course accounts 
expenditures and things in that fund as a business but it does not mean 
the fund has to be self sufficient. He said the Airport is an excellent 
example of that because it is an enterprise fund and has never been self-
sufficient and that the Council subsidizes the capital grants that the airport 
gets all the time.    
 
Mr. Norwood said the recommendation for that is the funds are coming 
from the Bed Tax which is from the visitors from Phoenix, Tucson and 
wherever and the patio furniture is something that is critical for the City’s 
200+ tournaments with the majority being May – September.  He said 40 – 
50% are from outside the area.  Councilman Bell said there was no 
argument about the need.  

    
Mic Fenech said, in reviewing why they suggested that this should come 
from Bed Tax Funds, about 3000 room nights come into the City of 
Prescott per year, primarily weekend nights, as a direct result of the 
enterprise going on at Antelope Hills.  He said they felt that they are 
asking for a very small return.   

    
Mayor Wilson said he can support the $43,000 and no matter what they 
do with the golf course they will have somebody complain.    

    
Councilman Luzius said the funds should come out of bed tax.  He said he 
does not understand why they have to always nail the enterprise fund for 
the incidentals like when they nailed it for the litigation they had that was 
not the golf course’s fault.  He said if they had raised the bed tax to 4% 
instead of 3% they probably would not even be talking about this.      

    
Councilman Bell said it is a technicality, it is a small amount of money in 
the overall picture and he is fine with it.   

    
Councilman Luzius asked Mr. Woodfill if the $10,000 to the Meals on 
Wheels is additional.  Mr. Woodfill said yes it is in addition to what was 
already approved. Councilman Luzius said he supports funding this 
program.     

   
Councilman Bell said last year the City funded Meals on Wheels $5,000 
and this next year the City is funding them with $20,000.  Mayor Wilson 
said Meals on Wheels has been told there is no funding guarantee for FY 
2010 due to the current financial situation.   

  



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 19 
 

Councilman Lamerson said he is not happy with the budget at all.  He said 
what they are doing right now is agreeing to put a ceiling on the budget 
and they are not agreeing to fund every line item in the budget.    

  
Mr. Woodfill said that is correct and once a tentative budget is adopted the 
budget can only be reduced between that and the final budget.  He asked 
what Council would like added to the tentative budget from the Capital 
Needs recommendations.     

   
Mayor Wilson said the consensus is to add the recommended amounts 
but that does not mean they will spend it.  He said his recommendation at 
the budget workshop was to include what the Capital Needs Committee 
recommends so that the Council will have volition to proceed but if it is not 
in the budget the will not have volition to do anything.   

 
Mr. Woodfill said this is next year’s budget that they are looking at and the 
Mayor is correct that if it is approved they could not get it going in 2009 
and most of the projects will not get started until 2010.     

    
Councilwoman Suttles said she does not want to add to the tentative 
budget because it is tough enough for Council to deal with what they have 
and she would like to see the Capital Needs presentation.  She said she 
would like to discuss it after that but if they choose to put that on the 
agenda then go ahead. 

    
Mayor Wilson said he wants to put it on because he thinks the problem is 
the timing. He said their presentation comes after Council actually finalizes 
the limit so they need to have it within the limit but they do not have to 
spend it.  Mr. Woodfill said that is correct and Council can reduce the final 
budget at the last meeting in June, which is after the Capital Needs 
presentation on June 17, 2008.  He said they just cannot increase it at that 
point.   

      
Mr. Woodfill said the steps include next week they will look at adoption of 
the tentative budget, which sets the overall top limit and sets the date for 
the Public Hearing for final budget, it sets the date for the Public Hearing 
for the expenditure limitation under home rule, and it sets the date for the 
Public Hearing for the property tax.  He said it also sets the date of the 
property tax and authorizes the publishing of the tentative budget, which is 
in the Council’s packets.  Mr. Woodfill said June 24, 2008 is the date 
contemplated for those Public Hearings.  He said they will have the 
hearings to consider the final budget, expenditure limitations and CIP and 
property tax will be considered on July 15.    

 
M. Notice of Public Hearing (June 10) and consideration of a liquor license 

application submitted by Harold Anderson, Agent for Gas Plus, for a 



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 20 
 

Series 10, Beer & Wine Store, license for Gas Plus located at 421 East 
Sheldon Street. 

   
  Deputy City Clerk Lorri Carlson said that this is a liquor license application 

submitted for Gas Plus, which currently has a liquor license, but this is 
required due to a change in ownership.  The property has been posted, no 
public comments have been received and the applicant has been asked to 
be present at the public hearing, which is scheduled for June 10. 

 
N. Approval of the Minutes of the Prescott City Council Regular Voting 

Meeting of May 13, 2008 and the Study Session of May 20, 2008. 
 
 O.  Selection of items to be placed on the Regular Voting Meeting Agenda of 

June 10, 2008. 
    

Councilwoman Suttles said the following items will be placed on the 
June 10, 2008 Consent Agenda: Items A, B, C, D, F, G, H, I, J, K, L, and 
N. 

 
IV. ADJOURNMENT 

 
There being no further business to be discussed, the Prescott City Council 
Study Session of June 3, 2008, adjourned at 5:10 p.m. 

 
 
 
 

*SPECIAL MEETING 
 

The Special Meeting of the Prescott City Council convened at 5:17 p.m. 
 
I. EXECUTIVE SESSION* 

 
A. Discussion or consultation for legal advice with the attorney or attorneys of 

the public body, pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(4) 
 

1. Interpretation of City Charter matters. 
 

2.      Project plan review processes and procedures.  
 
 
 

II. ADJOURNMENT 
 



Prescott City Council *Joint Study Session/ 
Special Meeting – June 3, 2008                                                                         Page 21 
 
 The Prescott City Council reconvened into Open Session at 6:40 p.m., at which 

time the Special Meeting of June 3, 2008 was adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      JACK D. WILSON, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 


